
CAPSULE SUMMARY SHEET 

Survey No.: M:28-7-2 (PACS 9.19) Construction Date: 1896 

Name: Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property / Sweetbriar 

Location: 17920 New Hampshire Avenue. Ashton. Montgomery County 

Private/Residence/Occupied/Excellent/Yes:restricted 

Description: 

The Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property, also known as Sweetbriar, is a 2^-story, 3-bay 
Queen Anne-style house on the west side of New Hampshire Avenue in Ashton, 
Montgomery County. Constructed in 1896, the building has a main hipped roof with 
several projecting gables and dormers. The front elevation has an off-center 
projecting gable with a 1-story front porch located at the intersection of the main 
block and projecting gable. The porch wraps-around from the front elevation to the 
north elevation. The south elevation has a projecting gable and a shed roof dormer. 
The north elevation has two gables; one gable projects while the second gable is 
flush with the exterior wall. The rear elevation has a 2-story shed roof extension 
and a 1-story shed roof porch enclosed circa 1920. The attic level has two hipped 
roof dormers. 

Significance: 

^ ^ In 1896, Alban G. Thomas of "Tanglewood" constructed a house for his recently 
married daughter, Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt on .4 hectares (1 acre) of land purchased 
from Charles and Jane Porter. The first record of the dwelling, known as 
"Sweetbriar", is an October 1896 Mutual Fire Insurance Company policy (Policy 
#33392) purchased by A.G. Thomas for Anna Nesbitt. The house is described as a 
frame dwelling covered with shingles, 3-stories with a wing, two passages, three 
porches, two fireplaces, two chimneys and nine rooms, with a value of $2200. Winter 
vacancy was permitted by the insurance company. Anna Thomas Nesbitt's husband, 
George Nesbitt, was employed as secretary of the Sandy Spring Savings Institution. 
Upon the death of George Nesbitt from tuberculosis in 1902, Anna Thomas Nesbitt 
moved to her father's home "Tanglewood" with her two children. The property 
remained in Anna Thomas Nesbitt's ownership. A few months after Anna's brother, 
Frederick L. Thomas, married Eliza Bentley in 1912, he moved into Sweetbriar. 

Anna Thomas Nesbitt died on October 29, 1928, with all property left to her brother 
Frederick L. Thomas. Her children were in possession of the property by 1945, when 
Sweetbriar was sold to Richard and Dorothy Janney, cousin's of the Thomas'. In 
1982, the property was purchased by Peter and Mary Janney Conlon. In 1989, 
Sweetbriar was sold to the current owners, Paul and Joanne McCaffrey. The size of 
the property remains .6 hectares (1.5 acres). 

Preparer 
P.A.C. Spero & Company 
May 1998 
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Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its various 
elements as it exists today. 

The Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property, also known as Sweetbriar, is a 2Vstory, 3-bay Queen Anne-
style house on the west side of New Hampshire Avenue in Ashton, Montgomery County. Constructed 
in 1896, the building has a main hipped roof with several projecting gables and dormers. The 
front elevation has an off-center projecting gable with a 1-story front porch located at the 
intersection of the main block and projecting gable. The porch wraps-around from the front 
elevation to the north elevation. The south elevation has a projecting gable and a shed roof 
dormer. The north elevation has two gables; one gable projects while the second gable is flush 
with the exterior wall. The rear elevation has a 2-story shed roof extension and a 1-story shed 
roof porch enclosed circa 1920. The attic level has two hipped roof dormers. 

The structure is of wood-frame construction with a stone foundation and an asphalt shingle roof. 
The first story has wood siding, while the second story is covered with wood shingles. The wood 
shingles are square cut with a row of octagon-shape shingles on the second story and the gable 

«ds of the attic level have octagon-shape shingles. The windows are wood double-hung and brick 
terior chimneys are located on the front and rear slopes of the main hipped roof. 

The porch on the east, or front facade has a standing-seam metal roof supported by six doric 
columns. The porch floor is wood with brick piers. Within the porch, the main entrance is a 
3-panel wood door with a Queen Anne window. The second story has a single 2/2 double-hung 
window. The first and second stories of the projecting bay each have a pair of 1/1 double-hung 
windows. The attic level of the gable end has a pair of 2/2 double-hung windows. 

At the intersection of the main block and projecting gable on the south elevation is a 2-story 
porch with a shed roof. The first story has a doric column at the corner. The second story has 
a closed half-wall railing and a post covered with wood shingles. Within the porches, on the 
west elevation, are a 12-light wood door on the first story and a 2-light wood panel door on the 
second story. 

The south elevation has a pair of 1/1 double-hung windows on the first and second stories of the 
main block. The first story of the projecting gable has a 1-story canted bay. The bay has a 
flat roof and three 2/4 double-hung windows. The second story and attic level each have a pair 
of 1/1 double-hung windows. The shed roof dormer on the south elevation has two 4-light casement 
windows. The south elevation of the 2-story shed roof extension which projects from the rear 
elevation has vinyl double doors on the first story and a pair of 1/1 double-hung windows on the 
second story. The enclosed shed roof porch has a wood 6/1 double-hung window on the south 
elevation. 

The rear elevation has a wood bulkhead entrance to the basement level at the southwest corner. 
\ single 1/1 double-hung window and a pair of 1/1 double-hung windows were located on the first 

^ n d second stories. The enclosed shed roof porch has a single-light wood panel door and a pair 
^^f 6/1 double-hung windows. The second story of the shed roof extension has a 2/2 double-hung 
window. The attic level has two hipped roof dormers with 6/6 double-hung windows. 
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7. Description (Continued) 

The north elevation has a 2/2 double-hung window on the first story of the main block, a 
projecting gable and a shed roof rear extension. The second story of the main block has a 2/2 
double-hung window and a Queen Anne fixed sash window. The second story of the projecting gable 
has a pair of single-light fixed sash windows and a 2/2 double-hung window. The attic level of 
the projecting gable end has a pair of 1/1 double-hung windows. The flush gable end has a 2/2 
double-hung window. The north elevation of the enclosed porch has a pair of 4-light casement 
windows. 

There are three outbuildings associated with this property. The first outbuilding is a 
garage/carriage house, with a cross-gable roof covered with standing-seam metal. Constructed 
in 1896, it is of wood-frame construction with a stone foundation and German wood siding. The 
building has a 1-story shed roof section on the west elevation with an open garage bay. The east 
elevation has an enclosed shed roof addition with sliding wood double doors. The structure is 
located southwest of the house. 

The second and third outbuildings are wood-frame chicken houses constructed circa 1920 and 1930. 
e buildings have multi-light casement windows on the south elevation and vertical wood siding, 
e structures are located west of the house and north of the garage. 

The property is located on the west side of New Hampshire Avenue, with a residential property 
constructed in 1918 to the north (Miller House, M:28-7-1), and circa 1980 residential development 
to the south and west. 

• age 7.1 
P.A.C. Spero & Company 
May 1998 
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Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and support. 

In 1896, Alban G. Thomas of "Tanglewood" constructed a house for his recently married daughter, 
Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt on .4 hectares (1 acre) of land purchased from Charles and Jane Porter. 
The first record of the dwelling, known as "Sweetbriar", is an October 1896 Mutual Fire Insurance 
Company policy (Policy #33392) purchased by A.G. Thomas for Anna Nesbitt. The house is described 

a frame dwelling covered with shingles, 3-stories with a wing, two passages, three porches, 
o fireplaces, two chimneys and nine rooms, with a value of $2200. Winter vacancy was permitted 

by the insurance company. Anna Thomas Nesbitt's husband, George Nesbitt, was employed as 
secretary of the Sandy Spring Savings Institution. Upon the death of George Nesbitt from 
tuberculosis in 1902, Anna Thomas Nesbitt moved to her father's home "Tanglewood" with her two 
children. The property remained in Anna Thomas Nesbitt's ownership. In 1912, Frederick L. 
Thomas, Anna Thomas Nesbitt's brother, married Eliza Bentley and moved into Sweetbriar. 

The Mutual Fire Insurance policy #49632 notes that the household furniture and clothing of 
Frederick L. Thomas are now insured within the house of Anna Thomas Nesbitt. In March of 1913, 
the insurance company granted, "permission to keep auto in stable." In 1914, Anna Thomas Nesbitt 
purchased an additional .2 hectares (.5 acres) of land from Benjamin and Sarah Miller. The total 
acreage of the property is now .6 hectares (1.5 acres). 

The February 1920 insurance policy (policy #62203) records that the furniture and silver of Anna 
Thomas Nesbitt are located in the dwelling of her father and that Frederick L. Thomas still 
resides at Sweetbriar. At that time, the building had steam heat, oil lights and an engine in 
the garage to pump water from the well. By 1921, the house had been electrified, as the annual 
update to the insurance policy (February 1921) notes that a Delco Light Plant was installed in 
the garage and electric lights in the house. Due to the electrification of the property, its 
value increased from $4000 to $6000 between 1920 and 1921. 

Anna Thomas Nesbitt died on October 29, 1928, with all property left to her brother Frederick 
L. Thomas. Her children were in possession of the property by 1945, when Sweetbriar was sold 
to Richard and Dorothy Janney, cousin's of the Thomas'. In 1982, the property was purchased by 
eter and Mary Janney Conlon. In 1989, Sweetbriar was sold to the current owners, Paul and 
anne McCaffrey. The size of the property remains .6 hectares (1.5 acres). 

• 
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8. Signif icance (continued) 

The Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property is located in Ashton. The community of Ashton in northern 
Montgomery County was, until 1890, a part of neighboring Sandy Spring and shares that town's 
early Quaker roots. Ashton centers roughly on the intersection of MD 650 (New Hampshire Avenue) 
and MD 108 (Olney-Sandy Spring Road) where early Quaker farmers brought their produce to be 
weighed. The crossroads also attracted Caleb Stabler and Charlie Porter who opened a store 
around 1860 and named it Ashton. The actual significance of this name is uncertain. In 1889 
Albin G. Thomas, a Quaker, took over the Ashton store. This community commenced its official 
existence when it received a post office in 1890, taking its name from Stabler and Porter's 
store. 

Twentieth century development in Ashton featured the community's rural character. In fact the 
first "development" in 1934 consisted of six "farmettes" complete with a small orchard and barn, 
and room for gardening and animals. Further developments undertaken since World War II, such 
as Ashton Pond and Ashmead, often took shape as planned communities under the supervision of 
local, as well as outside developers. Current county zoning, which requires lots of 2 hectares 
(5 acres), has helped preserve the rural nature of Ashton. 

«e house on the Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property was constructed in the Queen Anne-style, 
tween 1880 and 1900, the Queen Anne style became the most popular architectural form in the 

United States. This style relies on a contrast of construction materials and irregular roof 
shapes. A variety of roof forms are possible, including a hipped roof with cross gables, a 
cross-gable roof, a front-gable roof and the town house type. The Queen Anne style can be 
further subdivided by its decorative detailing. The first Queen Anne houses built in the United 
States displayed half-timbering in the gables or upper floors. This subtype, as well as 
patterned masonry examples, total only ten percent of the Queen Anne style houses built in this 
country. Half of all Queen Anne style houses demonstrate ornamental spindlework. This 
"gingerbread" or Eastlake detailing is often found on porches and gable ends. The last variation 
of the Queen Anne style first appeared in the 1890s and is called the free classic. This style 
of ornamentation replaced the delicate spindlework with classical columns and added Palladian 
windows, dentil cornice molding and other classical details. The free classic Queen Anne 
examples began the transition from the Victorian styles to the Colonial Revival and were 
constructed circa 1910 (McAlester 1984, 264). 

^ P a g e 8.1 
P.A.C. Spero & Company 
May 1998 
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8. Signif icance (continued) 

National Register Evaluation: 

The Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property, constructed in 1896, is eligible for the National Register 
of Historic Places under Criterion C, as a good example of the Queen Anne style. The property 
possesses excellent architectural integrity, and retains such character-defining features as a 
complex roof form with multiple gables, various exterior siding materials, extensive porches, 
and Queen Anne sash windows. 

The property is not eligible under Criterion A, as research conducted indicates no association 
with any historic events or trends significant in the development of national, state, or local 
history. Historic research indicates that the property has no association with persons who have 
made specific contributions to history, and therefore, it does not meet Criterion B. Finally, 
preliminary studies conducted for this project indicate the need for further assessment of the 
archaeological potential of this property. Therefore, no evaluation under Criterion D is being 
conducted at this time. 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
Eligibility recommended X Eligibility Not Recommended_ 
Comments 

>age 8.2 
P.A.C. Spero & Company 
May 1998 
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9. Major Bibliographical References rvey No. M:28-7-2(PACS 9.19) 

See Attached 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of nominated property .6 hectares (1.5 acres) 
Quadrangle name Sandy Spring. MP Quadrangle scale 1:24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

See Attached 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 
state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 
name/title Tim Tamburrino 

Organization P.A.C. Spero & Company date May 1998 

street & number 40 W. Chesapeake Avenue, Suite 412 telephone (410) 296-1635 

city or town Baltimore state Maryland 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the 
Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, 
Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposed only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to:Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCP/DHCD 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
(410) 514-7600 
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10. Geographical Data (Continued) 

Verbal Boundary Description and Justification: 

The National Register boundaries of the Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt Property follow the current 
property lines of 17920 New Hampshire Avenue (Tax Map JT342 / Parcel P200). This .6 hectare (1.5 
acre) parcel is bounded on the north by a 1918 residence (Miller House, M:28-7-1), and on the 
south and west by modern residential development. The boundary includes the main house, 
garage/carriage house and two chicken coops, all contributing structures. According to deed 
research, the property was originally part of a .4 hectare (1 acre) parcel which was purchased 
for Anna L. Thomas Nesbitt in 1896. Nesbitt added .2 hectares (.5 acres) to the acreage in 1914. 
The total acreage recommended for the National Register boundary is .6 hectares (1.5 acres). 

• age 10.1 
P.A.C. Spero & Company 
May 1998 
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10. Geographical Data (Continued) 

Resource Sketch and National Register Boundary Map: 
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Maryland Conprehensive Historic Preservation Plan Data Sheet 

Historic Context: 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PRESERVATION PLAN DATA 

Geographic Organization: 

Piedmont 

Chronological/Developmental Period(s): 

Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930 

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s): 

Architecture 

RESOURCE TYPE: 

Category (see Section 3 of survey form): 

Building 

Historic Environment (urban, suburban, village, or rural) 

Suburban 

Historic Function(s) and Use(s): 

Private Residence 

Known Design Source (write none if unknown): 

None 
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